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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The trustees present their report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the period 1st September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The trust operates 6 schools: Holy Trinity
Catholic School has 745 (2023: 728) an roli, Archbishop ilsley Catholic School and Sixth Form for pupils aged
11 to 18 has 1,172 (2023: 1,149) on roll, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11, has 345
(2023: 378) on rolf, The Rosary Catholic Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11, has 375 (2023: 377) on roll, St
Chad's Catholic Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11, has 205 on roll {2023: 205) and St Joseph's Catholic
Primary School for pupils aged 4 to 11 has 192 (2023: 201) on roll. A ‘otal of 3,034 pupils on roll, Gotober 2023
census.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constltution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (Registration Number: 11844357)
and is an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary
governing documents of the Academy Trust. The trustees of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is
known as St Teresa of Calcutta Multl Academy Company.

Details of the trustees who served during tho year except as noted are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be 2 member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabiiities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees' Indemnities
St Teresa of Caloutta Multi Academy Company has in place directors and trustees liability insurance indemnity
cover to a limit of £5m. '

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

There are clearly defined and approved procedures for the selection and appointment of trustees which are
outlined in the company's Articles of Association. These include application, shortlisting and interview
procedures. Gonsideration is given to the skills of trustees which would enhance the effectiveness of the trust,

Policles and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Tralning of Trustees

An induction pack containing relevant documentation needed to undertake the role is provided to all newly
appointed trustees. The induction pack describes their role as a trustees and gives some basic information
about the academy and the governing body. A range of training is also offered to trustees each year. Training
undertaken will depend on their experience. The Academy Trust subscribes to National College & Confederation
of School Trusts to ensure adequate tralning is obtained.

Organisational Structure

The structure consists of five levels: The Members, The Trustees, The CEO and Central Team, The Local
Governing Bodies and the Schools SLT. The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and
encourage involvement in decision making at alf levels. The trustees are responsible for setting general policy,
adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the academy through the use of budgets and making major
decisions about the direction of the academy, capltal expenditure and staff appointments.

"The Senior Leadership Team of each school contro!l each school at an executive level, implementing the policies
agreed by the Trustees and reporting back to their Local Governing Body and Trustees. Senior Leaders are also
responsible for the authorisation of spending and the appointment of staff as laid down in the Scheme of
Delegation.”
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

When setting pay for key management personnel, the Academy Trust considers the latest School Teachers' Pay
and Conditions policies and recommendations. In doing so, it considers the permanent responsibilities of each
role, the specific challenges to each role as well as all other relevant considerations. One such element of this
is the pumber of students that the Academy Trust is responsible for. This incorporates the number of students
by each Key Stage as well as the learning needs of pupils within each School.”

Pay and condltions for key management personnel within the central team are set and reviewed by the
Remuneration Commitiee. The pay of key management personnel also reflects the performance of each
member of staff on an annual bagis. The MAC will continue to use external national and sub-national
benchmarking analysis o compare its pay structure against that of other MACs, schools, and academies as it
has done in the past and when setting executive pay will reflect the Academy Trust Handbook ensuring its
decisions follow a robust evidence-based process and are a reasonable and defensible reflection of the
individual’s role and responsibilities.

Trade union facility time
During the year there were no frade union officials represented at the trust.

Connected Organlisations, Including Related Party Relatlonships

St Teresa of Calcutta Mulfl Academy Company was incorporated on 25 February 2019 and became a muiltl
academy trust from 1 May 2019 including under Its contro! Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop lisley
Catholic School and Sixth Form and Holy Souls Catholic Primary School. it expanded on 1% September 2021
with the addition of St Chad’s Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Catholic Primary School and The Rosary
Catholic Primary School. The MAC has plans to expand again in 2025 with the addition of a further € primary
schools. Consultation is currently being undertaken on this project.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Alms

The Academy Trust's objects are specifically restricted to the following: -

a) to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a
school offering a broad and bafanced curriculum and meeting the needs of students.

To achieve this, the academy identified the following priorities for the year:-

. To ensure that all pupils reach expected standards of attainment and make at least good and increasingly
outstanding progress.

® To develop the learning-centred leadership skills of all staff and governors to a consistently outstanding
quality.

) To develop the quality of teaching and learning so that 100% Is good or outstanding.

) To develop the skills, perfformance and capacity of teaching and support staff so that they become
reflactive practitionars, working to a consistently high standard.

. To ensure that the social and emotional experiences of all leamers are positive and rewarding.

Principal Activitles

At St Teresa of Caleuita Multi Academy, we work in partnership with young people, parents and carers to ensure

that every student will:

) Feel safe, happy and healthy.

. Enjoy high guality learning opportunities, in a school at the leading edge of innovation.

® Feel challenged and inspired to achieve excellence in every aspect of their lives.

® Become confident, enterprising, creative learners, fully equipped for life and work.

° Become fully-rounded and responsible citizens, making a positive contribution to the school, local,
national and global community.




ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY 6

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objects, Strategies and Actlvities
To meet these priorities the academy has adopted a number of strategies and activities that include: -

. To ensure a revised system of whole-school quality assurance and self-evaluation has greater impact
on student outcomes.

® To develop a learning and teaching model to engage all learners and encourage independence.

® To ensure provision is personalised tc the needs of all leamners.

° To embed high quality schemes of learning to ensure quality first teaching with a clear focus on
developing pupils towards independence.

L To further develop intervention, provision and support for learners to enable all to experience success.

® To ensure the effective use of pupil performance data and consequent intervention to improve pupil
outcomes.

. To further develop innovative, dynamic and strategic senior leadership and governance.

Public Benefit

Trustees have consideration tc the Charity's Commission’s general guidance on public benefit and in particular
to its supplementary guidance on education. As noted above, the Academy Trust's objective is to advance for
the public benefit education in the United Kingdom.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The frustees prasent their report together with the finangial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year ended 31 August 2024, For this audited period, the trust operated two secondary Catholic
schools and four Catholic Primary schools: Holy Trinity Cathalic School, Archbishop lisley Catholic School and
Sixth Form, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School, St Chad's Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Catholic
Primary School and The Rosary Catholic Primary School.

The vision of our MAC is inspired by the example of St. Teresa of Calcutta and the virtues and values shown in
ner life and work, We expect all whe work and study in our schools to:

Have the courage to challenge themselves to change their world by promoting ‘The Common Good.'.
Show compassion for others, respecting diversity and responding to need.

Develop their faith and to become more spiritual

Appraciate Gospel Values

Seek a fulfilling vocation by learning effectively so as to enrich their own lives and become active
citizens of the world.

The St Teresa of Calcutta MAC is courageous in its ambition to provide excellent experiences and cutstanding
outcomes for all young people in ocur community, Our collective vision of the essence of a Catholic education is
that it offers an attractive, ethos-led proposition to pupils, staff and the communities we serve and, in doing so
it sets the 5t Teresa of Calcutta MAC apart.

Inspired by the example of St. Teresa of Calcutta our family of schools are underpinned by the matto,
developed by our pupils, Dream Believe Achieve. Our MAC is compassionate and understanding to the variety
of needs that our young people bring. In this inclusive academy. everyone is valued, and nobody gets left
behind or forgotten. As St. Teresa said: ‘Every time you smile at someone, it is an act of love, a gift to that
person, a beautiful thing. The most terrible poverty is lonefiness, and the feeling of being unloved.' Everyone
who is part of this multi academy is valued as a unique individual created in the image of God.

We expect high standards in all our schools. These are svidenced by our commitment to an innovative approach
to high quality curriculum provision and teaching and learning. It is through these principles that children deveiop
a love of falth, learning and scholarship. Each young person has unigue talents that are nurtured and
encouraged as they discover their path in life.
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St Teresa of Calcutta MAC is progressing in its journey and will build upon the reputation and achievements of
its six schools. Thelr combined strengths, together with opportunities for working across the MAC, will now

support the further recruitment and retention of the very best teachers. Each school maintains its individual
character and continues to take an active part in its local networks such as the Central and East Collegiate,

Sursum Corda and Caritas.

Review and Achievements

School Improvement has been a major focus this academic year and all academies have worked with an external
School Improvement Partner to review and develop their school improvement plans. They have also all
benefitted from external safeguarding reviews.

A Strategic Lead for School Improvement took up post full time from September 2023 further enhancing the offer
to our academies focussing on supporting school leaders, sharing best practice and enhanced continuing
professional development for all staff.

The MAC received School Condition Allocation funding this academic year which has allowed extensive capital
investment in all of our academies including playground resurfacing, asbestos removal, kitchen refurbishment,
car park alterations, dralnage attenuation works, replacement windows.

Results
summer 2024 outcomes were awarded as a result of External Public Examinations. National estimates are

awaiting further revision.

- "-SchoolName - Numbers | Progress 8 | .Entering | Grade5or | Attalnment8 .
e o  m tofpuplls { < Score& ' | [EBacc | - aboveln - "Score -
_ .at' Key Description ;. - - .| English& | ".-"

ol - : Stage 4 e b e |'Maths GCSES | - -
Holy Trinity Catholic School 146 -0.14 18.5% 28.8% 41.48
Archblshop lisley Catholic 208 -0.18 IMN1% 36.4% 441
School

_ England ~ state funded schools -0.02 38.40% 43% 464
| England — all schools -0.04 35.10% 39.90% 443
_School Name Numbers of Value . |- - L3 -  Students Achleving
. students Added .. || Average | completing their | AAB or higher
‘with an A " | result | ‘mainstudy. .| .Inatleast2

- .level exam ‘Polints per | programme facilitating

) " entry S~ Entry: :|. .. " 7| subjects

|_Holy Trinity Catholic School N/A
Archbishop lisley Cathollc 50 -0.65 (Value 26.31 97.8% 2.8%
School Added) L3
overall

| England — state funded schools 0 31.14 96.30% 14.30%
| England -~ all schools 0 32.39 17.00%
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Hecaption - Bood Lavel of Develonmant
School Performance Data - GLD
2019 1 2032 | 2028 | 2028
- ;Na?féma:l 71.80% 65.40% | 67.30% | 67.70% 2024 Comparison
Blrmingham 1
LA 68.00% . 62.70% | 65.50% | £5.00%
Bifference | Difference
- Bham L4 | Nationai
Holy Souls [ 62.70% 47.70% | 52.30% | 70.00% | 5.00% 2.30%
StChad's | 60.00%  S8.10% | 56.70% | $5.20% | -9.80% | -12.50%
| StJoseph's | 69.20% : 45.40% | 66.70% | 52.60% | -12.40% 15.10%
__The Rosa 59.30% | 63.50% | 62.20% | 62.80% | -2.20% 4.90%
(RAACIAvaTagall 62.50% | 53.95% | 61.08% 60.15% | 4.85% | -7.55%

School Performance Data - Year 1 Phonics
T 2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024
National | 81.80% | 75.50% | 78.90% | 80.20% .
= 2024 Comparison
Birmingham ]-
LA 81.80% | 75.50% | 79.10% ; 79.20%
i Difference | Difference
} Bham kA | WNatioral |
Holy Souls | 81.80% ' 64.90% | 79.10% ! 88.10% |  8.30% 7.90%
StChad's | 93.20% | 70.40% | 82.20% ! 86.70% | 6.90% 6.50%
Stjoseph's | 90.30% | G3.30% | £3.30% [ 78.30% | -150% | -150%
The Rosary | 82.80% | 50.00% | 70.70% | 78.50% | -0.90% -1.30%
IMACTAvsingell 87.00% | 69.65% | 76.10% | 83.05% | 2.20% 2.80%
2024 Key Stage 2 Expected Standard
School Performance Data - Year 6 Reading EXP+
= 2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024
Mational | 73.20% | 74.60% | 72.60% | 74.00% )
— e 2024 Comparison
Eirmingham
LA | 65.80% | 73.90% | 69.50% | 71.50%
Gifferance | Diffarence
. Aham LA | National
| HolySouls ! 61.76% | $1.50% | 52.60% | 53.60% | -11.50% -14.40%
StChad’s | 85.70% | 79.30% | 81.50% | 66.70% | -4.80% -7.30%
StJoseph's | 80.00% | 83.30% | 36.20% i 71.50% |  0.00% -2.50%
The Rosary | 79.50% | 57.10% | €3.30% | 70.50% | 040%  -2.10%
IMACTEVerage || 76.75% 73-‘55‘3&._L.._.__{9-£’3?§..l B57.43% | -4.08% -6.58%
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School Performance Data - Year 6 Writing EXP+

2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024

National 78.40% | 69.40% | 71.50% | 72.00% 2024 Comparison

Birmingham LA . 76.20% | 67.20% | 69.60% | 70.60%

Difference Difference
8ham LA National
Holy Souls | 76.70% | 66.70% | 49.10% | 61.40% |  -9.20% -10.60%
St Chad's 78.60% | 82.80% | 74.10% | 70.00% |  -0.60% -2.00%
St joseph's | 80.00% | 66.70% | 65.50% | 48.30% | -22.30% -23.70%
The Rosary | 75.90% | 75.50% | 61.20% | 68.40% [  -2.20% -3,60%
'MAC Average | 77.80% | 72.93% | 62.48% | 62.03% [ -8.57% -9,97%

School Performance Data - Year 6 Maths EXP+

2019 2022 2023 2024
National 78.70% | 71.50% | 72.90% | 73.00% 2024 Comparison
Birmlngham LA | 76,90% | 70.50% | 72.30% | 73.20%
Difference Difference

Bham LA National

Holy Souls 70.00% | 55.60% | 54.40% | 59.60% -13.60% -13.40%

St Chad's 82.10% | 86.20% | 88.90% | 60.00% -13.20% -13.00%

St Joseph's 96.00% 1 90.00% | 86.20% | 58.60% -14.60% -14.40%
___The Rosary 87.00% i 51.00% | 83.70% | 68.40% -4,80% -4.60%
gACawere ¢ | 83.78% | 70.70% | 78.30% | 61.65% |  -11.55% -11.35%

School Performance Data - Year 6 GPS EXP+

2019 2022 2023 2024
National 78.00% | 72.50% | 72.30% | 72.00% 2024 Comparison
Birmingham LA | 79.20% | 74.50% | 73.50% 74.40%
Difference Difference
Bham LA National
Holy Souls 70.00% | 65.10% | 52.60% | 73.70% -0,70% 1.70%
5t Chad's 89.30% | 89.70% | 85.20% | 63.30% | -11.10% -8.70%
St Joseph's 96.00% | 90.00% } 86.20% | 82.80% 8.40% 10.80%
The Rosary 50.70% | 67.30% | 79.60% | 77.20% 2.80% 5.20%
MAC Average | 86.50% | 78.03% | 75.90% | 74.25% -0.15% 2.25%
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School Perfermance Data - Year 6 RWiM Combined
EXP+
2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024
 Natiomal | 64.90% | 56.70% | 59.50% | 51.00% 2024 Comparisen
Birmingham LA | 62.10% | 57.50% | 57.70% | €0.00%
Difference Difference
Bham LA Mationat
__HolySouls | 5L70% | 46.00% | 36.80% | 47.40% | -12.60% -13.60%
5t Chad's 78.50% | 79.30% | 14.00% | S3.30% | -6.70% -7.70%
Stjoseph's | 76.00% | 66.70% | 52.10% | 48.30% | -11.70% -12.70%
The Rosary | 75.90% | 40.80% | 53.10% | 61.40% |  1.40% 0.45%
I MIACHYemgell| 70.55% | 58.20% | 56.53% | 5260% | -7.40% -8.00%

2024 Key Stage 2 High/Greater Depth Standard

School Performance Data - Year 6 Réadiﬂg iHigh

2019 2022 2023 2024
National 27.00% | 28.00% | 29.00% | 28.00% 2024 Comparison
Birmingham LA | 24.80% | 27.20% ! 26.70% | 26.50%
Difference | Difference
' Bhara LA National
Holy Souls 25.00% | 20.60% 1 15.50% | 29.80% | 3.36% @ 1.80%
5t Chad's §2.90% | 24.10% | 33.20% | 13.30% | -13.20% | -14.70%
Stloseph's | 52.00% ! 30.00% , 20.70% | 30.70% | -5.80% -7.30%
The Rosary 37.00% ! 14.30% | 14.30% | 26.30% 9208 0 -1.70%
_MACBveragell] 39.23% | 22 25% | 21.03% [2253% | -3.98% | -548% |

School Performance Data - Year 6 Writing High
T 2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 o
National 20.10% : 12.80% | 13.30% | 13.00% 2024 Comparison
| Birmingham LA | 16.20% | 10.20% | 10.30% | 10.80%
bifference Difference
Bham LA Nationat
__HolySouls | 20.00% | 17.50% | 10.50% | 5.30% | -5.50% -7.70%
St Chad's 7.10% | 0.00% | 3.70% | 3.30% | -7.50% -9.70%
| Stioseph’s | 16.00% | 10.00% | 0.00% | 3.40% -7.40% -9.60%
TheRosary | 9.30% | 18.40% | 4.10% | 8.80% | -2.00% -8.20%
L MACAverags || 13.10% | 11.48% | 4.58% | 5.20% 5.60% | -780%
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School Performance Data - Year 6 Maths High
2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024
National 26.60% | 22.50% | 23.80% | 24.00% 2024 Comparison
Birmingham LA { 26.70% | 22.60% | 24.60% | 24.90%
Difference Difference
Bham LA National
Holy Souls | 21.70% | 6.30% | 15.80% | 21.10% |  -3.80% -2.90%
St Chad's 39.30% | 34.50% | 18.50% | 20.00% |  -4.90% -4.00%
St Joseph's | 36.00% | 20.00% | 37.90% | 27.60% 2.70% 3.60%
The Rosary | 35.20% | 18.40% | 26.50% | 28.10% |  3.20% 4.10%
| MIAC Average || 33.05% | 19.80% | 24.68% | 24.20% |  -0.70% 0.20%

School Performance Data - Year 6 GPS High

2019 2022 2023 2024
National 35.70% | 28.20% | 30.10% | 32.00% 2024 Comparison
Birmingham LA | 40.50% | 32.10% | 34.10% | 36.70% ]
Difference Difference
Bham LA National
Holy Souls 31.70% | 20.60% | 21.10% | 42.10% 5.40% 10.10%
St Chad's 64.30% | 51.70% 48.10_96 16.70% -20.00% -15.30%
St Joseph's £4.00% | 50.00% | 65.50% | 37.90% 1.20% 5.90%
The Rosary 51.90% | 16.30% | 26.50% | 40.40% 3.70% 8.40%
| MACAverage | 52.98% | 34.65% | 40.30% | 34.28% |  -2.43% 2.28%

mgchool Performance Data - Year 6 RWM Combined

High
2019 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 T
National 10.60% | 7.20% | 8.00% | 8.00% 2024 Comparlsen
Birmingham LA | 9.40% | 6.40% | 6.80% | 6.80%
Difference Difference
Bham LA Natlonal

Holy Souls 11.70% | 3.20% | 7.00% | 3.50% -3.30% - -4.50%
St Chad's 7.10% 0.00% | 3.70% | 3.30% -3.50% -4.70%
St Joseph's 16.00% | 10.00% | 0.00% | 3.40% -3.40% -4.60%
TheRosary | 000% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 7.00% 0.20% -1.00%
| MABC Bvarage | 8.70% | 3.30% | 2.68% | 4.30% | -2.50% -3.70%
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Key Financial Performance Indicators

The trust established a financial budget at the start of the vear and then menitored performance against budget
during the year. Considerable work is undertaken in forecasting {o ensure the continued financial viability of the
academy. Trustees play a key role in holding the Senior Leadership Team to account in key financial matters.
Key financiai performance ingicators for Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop [isley Catholic School, Holy
Souls Catholic Primary School, St Chad’s Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Catholic Primary School and
The Rosary Catholic Primary Schocl are detalled below:

Holy Trinity Catholic School 2024 ,' 2023
Pupii numbers 745 | 728
Staft costs as a % of fotal revenue grant income 7% | 75%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 80% | 76%

i Capital expenditure per pupil £556 | £171
Archbishop lIsley Catholic School and Sixth Form 2024 2023
Pupil numbers 1,172 1,149
Siaff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 80% 72%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 78% 75%
Capital expenditure per pugil £269 £414

[ Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 2024 | 2023
Pupil numbers 345 | 376
Staff costs as 2 % of total revenue grant income 82% 74%
Staff costs as 2 % of total costs 85% 80%
Capital expenditure per pupil £533 £274
8t Chad’s Cathollc Primary Schoo 2024 2023
Pupil numbers 208 205

taff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 71% 64%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 78% 73%
Capital expenditure per pupil £725 1,278

: St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 2024 2023
Pupil numbers 192 201

i Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 79% 71%

g Staff costs as a % of total costs 80% 75%

| Capitai expenditure per pupil £828 £194
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 2024 | 2023
Pupil numbers 375 377

| Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 77% T74%
Staff costs as a % of total costs | 80% 76%
* Capital expenditure per pupil | £180 £24
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Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found In the Statement of Accounting policies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview
The principal source of funding for both Academles Is the General Annual Grant. Most of the Academy Trusts

income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular
purposes. The grants recelved from the ESFA during the period ended 31 August 2024 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

During the year ended 31 August 2024, total expenditure of £24,551,000 (2023: £22,703,000), was more than
covered by recurrent grant funding from the ESFA and other incoming resources, Excluding restricted fixed
assets funds there was a deficit before transfers for the year of £25,000 (2023: £350,000 surplus).

At 31 August 2024 the net book value of fixed assets was £2,438,000 (2023: £1,621,000) and movements in
tangible fixed assets are shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the puplls of the School.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) figures as at 31 August 2024 are based on projecting forward
the estimated position at 8 January 2018 and assuming that the experience over the year, apart from investment
returns, has been in fine with the assumptions made at the start of the year.

The estimated FRS 102 deficit at 31 August 2024 is £6,005,000 (2023: £6,685,000). The main reason for the
decrease in the deficit is because of:

. Increased yields on bonds driving an increase in the discount rate and therefore decrease in the present
value of scheme liabilities
° decreases in the assumed life expectancy of people retiring today and in the future

The cash balance at 31 August 2024 Is £3,066,000 (2023: £4,524,000)

it should be noted that the balance sheet, profit and loss and statement of recogniged gains and losses figures
will be volatile over time. This is generally because the FRS102 liabilities are largely linked to corporate bond
yields whereas the scheme invests a large part of its assets in equities.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Trust's financial and risk management objectives are documented in its:

Official budgets
Scheme of delegation
Financial regulations
Risk management policy

These documents are available on request, and particular items which warrant specific disclosure are noted
within this annual report.
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Reserves Policy

The trustees review the reserve levels of the academy annually. This review ercompasses the nature of income
and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The trustees
have determined that the appropriate level of reserves should be equivalent te at least one month's worth of the
General Annual Grant funding. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays
between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as
urgent maintenance. Any surplus reserves built up by the Academy are earmarked to cover:

. planned capital expenditure;
] improve the quality of learning and social spaces within the school;

Reserves as at 31 August 2024 were £1,802,000 (2023: £2,147,000) after deductions had been made for the
tangible fixed asset funds of £2,405000 (2023: £1,697,000) and the long term LGPS pension deficit of
£6,005,000 (2023; £6,685,000).

Financial Position

The academy held fund balances at 31 August 2024 of £1,502,000 (2023: £2,147,000), after allowing for the
pension deficit of £8,005,000 (2023: £6.685,000) and restricted fixed asset funds of £2,405,000 (2023:
£1,697,000); compriging £1,002,000 (2023; £1,697,000) of restricted funds and £902,000 (2023; £982,000) of
unrestricted general funds.

Investment Policy

All investments are made in accordance with the policy of the trust, The trust's policy on investments are one of
minimum risk with all investments being held with the frust's bankers. The trust will nevertheless seek to
maximise interest receipts within this arrangement. Investments are made with regard to Charity Commission
guidance in refation to investments.

PRINCIPLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The board has considered the risks faced by the trust throughout its normal operational business. I has sought
to address the risks faced by the trust by establishing appropriate governance and management arrangements,
including the appeintment of senior staff and other managers, and establishing robust operational policies. This
has included consideration of those risks impacting on trustees' responsibilities to ensure the trust's estate is
safe, well maintained and complies with relevant regulations. The board considers that these arrangements have
been effective throughout the year being reported. '

The board intends to build on this success by regularly reviewing it's risk register which will formally document
the managerial action that is taking place, and should enable future risk management to be more systematic.

At the time of reporting, the trust's identified key risks are:

. The risk of achievement in core subjects being below expectations;
° Loss of personal and sensitive information.

° The risk of national and local funding reductions; and

° Risks associated with pupil safeguarding.

Mitigating action, both current and planned, has been identified to address these risks. This is also true of all
other risks that have been formally identified which have a lower level of impact and/or likelihood.

Risk Management

The major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed have been identified on the academy's Risk Register,
owned by the CFO and Rescurces committee. Trustees have reviewed the risks to which the Academy Trust is
exposed and systems and procedures have been put in place to mitigate these.
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Fundralsing
Under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 the academy trust approach

to fundraising practices is as follows:

» Fundraising for Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop llsley Catholic School, Holy Souls Catholic
Primary School, St Chad's Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Cathelic Primary School and The Rosary
Catholic Primary School, whilst overseen by the CEO, will be led and managed by each school.

» All activittes undertaken by each school In relation to fund raising require approval by the relevant Local
Goveming Body and CEQ.,

Plans for Future Periods

The deficit position of the Local Government Pension Scheme may result in an increase in employers pension
contributions over a period of years., The Trust has revisited its current business plans and budgets and
ascertained how the pension costs might impact on the budgets in the future, plans have also been considered
concerning increased costs in national insurance as a result of the cessation of confracting out, as well as likely
national funding reductions.

Auditors

In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware;

. the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

) correspendence from the ESFA.

The auditors, UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint
them wilt be proposed at the annual general meeting.

el

Frances McGarry Professor Paul
Chair of Trustees Accounting Offi
21 November 2024 21 November 20
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Scope of Responsibiiity

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Teresa of Caicutta Multi
Academy Company has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business cbjectives and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. As trustees, we have
reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for
governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Professor Paul Ryan, CEO as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conferm with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilites assigned to it in the funding
agreement between St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the Secretary of State for Education.

They are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in
internal contral.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 5 times since 1st September
2023. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Qut of a Posslible
Frances McGarry 5 5
Sean Devlin 4 5
Mary Mills 5 5
Mary Higgins 5 5
Sue Hughes 1 4
Andrew Kennedy 5 5
David Whale 4 5
Christopher Price 5 5
Andrew Cullinane 3 5
Janet Tibbits 1 1

Conflicts of Interest

St Teresa of Calcutta MAC maintains an up-to-date pecuniary interest register which is published on the MAC
website. There is also a standing item on all Trust Board agendas for declarations to be made. The Trust Board
is always quorate when making decisions and any trustee who is deemed to be conflicted removed from such
decisions. A directive from the Diocese that the Trustees should not hold a position on local school governing
bodies has aisc been taken on board.

Governhance Reviews

The Board of Trustees of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company reviews its governance arrangements
on an annual basis. During the year a self-assessment governance review took place in September 2023 using
the Confederation of School Trusts (CST) Self-Assassment Framework in line with the CST best practice
framework an external review will take place in 2024. The Board of trustees has met 5 times this year. In addition
to board meetings, effective oversight of the academy trust funds is maintained by:

1. 3 additional meetings of the Resources committee and ad hot meetings on matters of financial
imporiance;
2. review of monthly management accounts;

3. CEQ and CFO meet weekiy.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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Review of Value for Money (cont'd)

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. 3 vaiue for money improvements, as required by
the Academies Accounts Direction, have been provided below.

1. Review of HR & Payroll Providers

The contract for the provislon of HR & payroll services was ended with Birmingham City Council,
Following & thorough & lengthy tender process with several alternative suppliers the MAC has moved to
a new provider in August 2024. Neo People were selected by the MAC to provide HR advice and payroll
bureau service resulting in a saving of £39k per annum representing 49% of the previous cost. This has
also resulted in an enhanced service with superior software providing more timely and accurate
management information.

2. The Trust's Investment Strateqy
In Line with the MAC Investment policy a series of long and medium term investments have been made
with Lioyds Bank PLC during 2023-24, Interest rates have remained favourable during the year and the
investments have ylelded a return of £64k.
Some of the additional Income generated has been used to fund a residentiat to Whitemoor Lakes for
all primary school children In Year 8. This is scheduled to take place in Noverber 2024,

3. Review of Staffing Structures
The Trust annually reviews staffing costs in terms of curriculum delivery, teaching, and non-teaching
staff. This year the Trust has scrutinised recruitment across all schools in the Trust. Schools must now
provide both the CEO & CFO a business case regarding proposed new appointments, Careful
consideration by the Trust coupled with benchmarking exercises aid the decision making to ensure the
efficiency and effectiveness of curriculum delivery costs. ICFP has been carried out in all schools and
results shared and discussed both at school and Board level. The Trust continues to review future staffing
expenditure in terms of falling pupil numbers across Primary schools, with this in mind a number of fixed
term positions were offered rather than permanent roles.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance of effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, fo evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company for the year
ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capaclty to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been In place for the year ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date

of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees and Resources Committee.

The Risk and Control Framework

The St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company system of internal financial control is based on a framework
of regular management Information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. It includes:
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. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustess.
] regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase pians, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance.

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties.

identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has continued from 1
September 2023 the reciprocal arrangement with the Business Manager at Kings Norton Girls School as the
Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditors role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of
checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out In the current period
included:

° HR & payroli; ° purchasing and procurement;
] income; ® general accounting and year end procedures.

On a termly basis, the internal auditor will visit the trust to review specific areas of the systems of control and on
the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibilities. A report will be provided on a termly basis. The
Internal Auditor delivered their schedule of work as planned and no material control issues were identified.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;,

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal controf framework;

ESFA School Resource Management Advisor

. correspondence from ESFA.

The Accounting Cfficer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Resources/Audit Committee.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the Resources/Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the board of trustees is of
the opinion that the academy has an adequate and effective framework for gavernance, risk management and
control.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 21 November 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Mw/é( o

Frances McGarry Professor PaulfA Ryan
Chair of Trustees CEO
21 November 2024 21 November 2024
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2024

As Accounting Officer of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy company | have considered my responsibility
fo notify the Board of Trustees and the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement, between the academy trust and the Secretary of State. As part
of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023,
including responsibllity for estates safety and management

| confirm that | and the academy trust are able to identify any material iregular or improper use of funds by
the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust’s funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023 including responsibilities for estates safety

and management.

i confirm that no instances of material irregular, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. if any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of

tfrustees and ESFA.

Professor Payl{Ryan
Accounting Officer
21 November 2024
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The trustees (who act as Directors of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and are alsc the
trustees of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsibie for preparing the
trustees’ Report and the financiai statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and reguiations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
iaw the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
trustees are required fo:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles in the Charlties SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024,
make judgments ard estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Charitable Company will continue in business.

The trustees are respcnsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Charitable Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies
financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE have been applied
far the purposes intended.

The trustess are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Charitable Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of trustees on 21 November 2024 and signed on its behalf
by:

Frances McGarry
Chair of trustees
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company for the year
ended 31 August 2024 which comprise Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statement, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of [reland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and
the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Edugcation and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:
¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Companys affairs as at

31 August 2024 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including income and

expenditure, for the year then ended;
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2018 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024
Basls for oplnion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern .
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the frustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not Identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi
Academy Companys ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when
the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other informatlon

The other information comprises the infarmation included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The frustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the financial statements. Our opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the axtent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion therson.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Inour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit;

¢ the information given in the trustees' report (incorporating the Strategic Report, and the Director's Report)
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

¢ the trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable compary and its environment obtained in

the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report. We have

niothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if. in our opinion:

* adequale accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

o certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

Responsibllities of trustees

As explained more fully In the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal controf as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the St Teresa Of Calcutta
Muiti Academy Companys ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate
the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsiblilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in fine with our responsibilities, outiined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
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Use of our report
This repart is made solely to the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's members, as a body, in

accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company’s members those matters we are
required to stafe to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the St Teresa Of Calcufta Multi
Academy Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company’s and the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi
Academy Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have

formed.

Malcolm Winston

Senlor Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham} LLP, Statutory Auditor
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

21 November 2024
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Based on our understanding of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the industry in which
it operates, we identified that the principal risks of non-compilance with laws and regulations related to the
acts by the St Teresa Of Caloutta Multi Academy Company, which were contrary to applicable laws and
regulations including fraud, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a2 material
effect on the financial staternents. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP 2019 and
Academies Accounts Directior 2023 to 2024. We evaluated management’s incenfives and cpportunities for
fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk of override of controls), and determined
that the principal risks were related fo inflated revenue and the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy
Company's net income for the year.

Audit procedures performed inciuded: review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation, review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, including correspondence with
the Education and Skills Funding Agency review of correspondence with legal advisors, enquiries of
management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related fo the financial statements, and
testing of journals and svaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the trustees that represented a risk
of material misstatement due to fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also. the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiai
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ¢or the override of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the academy trust’s internal control,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we cenclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report {o
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease fo continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conteni of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Approach (cont'd)

* Review of the general control environment for the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company on
financial statements and on regularity;

* Sample testing of expenditure transactions to ensure the activity Is permissible within the multi academy
trust's framework of authority;

* Confirmation that a sample of expenditure has been appropriately authorised In accordance with the multi
academy trust's delegated authorifies;

* Formal representations obtained from the board of trustees and the accounting officer acknowledging the
responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and regulations specific to the
authorising framework;

* Confirmation that any extra contractual payments such as severance and compensation payments have
been appropriately authorised,;

* Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or trustees;

* Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;

* Review of related party transactions for connections with the principalffinance manager or trustees; and

* Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the multl academy trust's
charltable objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the

authorities which govern them.

(AR, Lo Aoy = m\s@%@\@h\) (AP

Reportifg Accountant

UHY Hacker Young (BirmIngham) LLP
9-11 Vittorla Sireet

Birmingham

B1 3ND

21 November 2024
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ST
TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 27 June 2024 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether. the expenditure
disbursed and income received by the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company during the period 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the St Teresa Of Calcutta Muiti Academy Company and the ESFA in
accordance with our engagement [etter. Our review has been undertaken so that we might state fo the
governing body and the ESFA those matters we are required fo state to it in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respongibility to anyone other
than the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibllities of St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's accounting officer
and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy
Companys funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 July 2013, and the Academy
Trust Handbook extant from 1 September 2023 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received
is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
reguirements of the Academies: Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether, anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for Exiernal Auditors and
Reporting Accountants issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in
our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the muiti academy company's income and expenditure. :

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

* Analytical review of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's general activities are within the
multi academy trusts framework of authorities;

* Consideration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance;
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

(Including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted  General Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
income from:
Donations and capital granis 3 26 - 951 977 1,136
Charitable activities:
~ Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 - 23,981 - 23,981 22,376
Other trading activities 5 225 - - 225 266
Investment income 6 108 - 108 14
Total 369 23,981 961 25,291 23,792
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 130 - 130 114
Charitable activities:
- Academy trust's educational operations 7 - 23,960 461 24,421 22,689
Total 130 23,960 461 24,661 22,703
Net income/{expendIture) 229 21 480 740 1,089
Transfers between funds 17 (309) 91 218 - -
Other recognised galns and losses
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
schemes 28 - 405 - 405 1,437
Net movement in funds (80} 517 708 1,145 2,526
Recanciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 17 982 {5,5620) 1,697 (2,841) ({5,367)
Total funds carried forward 17 902 (5,003) 2,406 (1,696) (2,841)

All of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's activities derive from acquisitions and continuing

operations during the above two financial periods.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
Note 2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Fixed assots
Tangible assets 13 2,438 1,621
2,438 1,621
Current assets
Debtors 14 757 728
Cash at bank and in hand 3,066 4,524
L 3,823 5,252
Current llabilitles
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 18 {1,916) {2,969)
Net current assets 1,907 2,283
Total assets less current liabilities 4,345 3,904
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (38) {60)
Net assets excluding pension llability 4,309 3,844
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 28 {6,005) (6,685)
Total Net Liabilities (1,696) {2,841}
Funds of the Academy:
Resfricted funds
- Fixed asset fund 17 2,405 1,697
- Restricted income fund 17 1,002 1,166
- Pension reserve 17 {6,005) (6,685)
Total Restricted Funds {2,598} (3,823)
Unrestricted income fund 17 902 882
Total Unrestricted Funds 902 982
Total Funds {1,6986) (2,841)

The financial statements on pages 27 to 52 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 21

November 2024 and signed on their behalf by:

Frances McGarry
Chair
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Notes 2024 2023
£'000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 21 (1,218) {2,469)
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (219) 47
Cash flows from financing activities 23 (24) (24)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (1,458) (2,446)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 24 4,624 6,870

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 24 3,066 4l524
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of principal acsounting policies adopted (which have been applied congistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources ¢f estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities :
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable 1o charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2008.

St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS
102

Transfer of State Maintained School to a Multl Academy Trust

The transfer of a state maintained schools to St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company involved the
transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for nil consideration and has
been acceunted for under the acquisition accounting method.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from the Local Authority to an academy trust have
been valued at their fair value being a reasonable estimate of the current market value that the Trustees
would expect to pay in an cpen market for an equivalent item. Their fair value is in accordance with the
accounting poiicies. set out for St Teresa of Calcutta Catholic Multi Academy Company. The amounts
have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding net amount
recognised as a net gainfloss in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed as donations
fransferred from local authority on conversion,

Going Concern

The Trusiees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company
to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one
year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financiai statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern,
thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt

is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

« QGrants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entittement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued,
General Annual Grant is recognised in fuil in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the pericd is deducted from income and recognised
as a llability.
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance
sheet |n the restricted fixed asset fund.

» Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable, where receipt is probable and it
can be measured refiably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

¢ Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can

be reliably measured.

e Otherincome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

¢ Donated goods, facllitles and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If if is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised In stock and
‘Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'.
Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from cther trading activilies'.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recoghised as Income from donations and a corresponding amount is included In the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life In accordance with the Academy Trust's
accounting policies.
Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each
activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in
undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset's use.

e Expendifure on Ralsing Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

o Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and

costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £2,000 or more are caplitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have beenh acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are inclided in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions altached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the refated grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in
the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Baiance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down to
thelr estimated residual values over thelr expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for other
assets are:

Site improvements 2%
Leasehold land and buildings 2%
Furniture and equipment 25%
Computer equipment and software 33.33%
Motor vehicle 20%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying value of
fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activifies.

Where academies are cperating under a licence to occupy, the land and buildings are not recognised as
fixed assets in the financlal statements. This applies to the majority of the land and buildings occupied by
St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company whereby it does not own any of the sites. The schools
sites are owned by Birmingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees and are made available to the
schools by a Church Supplemental Agreement.' Birmingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees have
given an undertaking to the Secretary of State that they will not give the multi academy company less
than two years notice to terminate the occupation of the land and buildings.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as foflows:

Financial assefs - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial fiabilittes - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instrument, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred Income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as
the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the ests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly. the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxatlon in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(‘TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('L GPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future penslonable payrell. The contributions are determined
by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently
the TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a multi funded employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabllities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least trlennially and are updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and
the costs of the scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.

They are Included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is
also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the Interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of
the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets
is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. Restricted fixed asset funds
are resources which are to be applied to specific capltal purposes imposed by funders where the asset
acquired or created Is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for
Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

clreumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting

estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
asseis and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions Include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension llability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions fiability at 31
August 2024, Any differences between the figuree derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

The critical judgements that the Trustess have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory
financial statements are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of
assets through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability. Government grants are accounted
for as restricted funds. The pension liabllity is assessed by an independent actuaria! valuation.
Deprecation rates are based on the expected life of the asset.

Any LGPS surpluses will only be recognised as an asset in the financial statements to the extent that the
academy trust can recover this surplus, either through a reduction in future contributions or through a
refund to the academy trust.

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of impairment assets, the Trustees have considered
both external and internal sources of information such as market conditions. counterparty credit ratings
and experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of impairments identified during the
current financial year.

Critical areas of judgement

The critical judgements that the Trustees have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory
financial statements are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of
assets through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability, Government granis are accounted
for as restricted funds. The pension liability is assessed by an Independent actuarial valuation.
Deprecation rates are based on the expected life of the asset.

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of impairment assats. the Trustees have considered
both externa! and internal sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty credit ratings
and experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of Impairments identified during the
current financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy
Company was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August

2024 (see note 17).
3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

DfE/ESFA capltal grants
School Condition Allocation
Other ESFA capital grants
Donations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

68 68 67

- 883 883 842

- - - 141

26 - 26 86

26 951 977 1,136

The income from donations and capital grants was £977,000 (2023: £1,136,000) of which £26,000
(2023: £86,000) was unrestricted, £Nil (2023: £Nil) resiricted and £951,000 (2023: £1,050,000)

restricted fixed assets.

4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023
DiE/ESFA grants £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (note 2) - 18,796 18,796 17,5694
Post 16-19 core grant ' - 664 664 648
Rates relief grant - 21 21 59
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Universal infant free school meals grant - a9 99 105
Conversion grant - - - 10
PE and sports grant . 74 74 74
Pupil premium grant - 1,753 1,763 1,685
Teachers pay grant . 344 344 1
Teachers pension grant - 205 205 24
Supplementary grant - - - 546
ESFA - Mainstream Schoois Additional Grant - 669 669 279
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 8 B 59
National tutoring programme - 92 92 139
) - 22,725 22,725 21,223
Other Government grants
Special educational needs - 323 323 410
Pupil premium grant - 14 14 33
Local authority grants - 103 103 130
- 440 440 573
COVID-19 DfE/ESFA additlonal funding
Recovery Premium - 328 328 326
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - - 12
- 328 328 337
Other income from the academy trust's
educational cperations:
Other - 251 251 6
Pupil catering income - 237 237 237
- 488 488 243
- 23,881 23,981 22,376

The income from funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities was £23,981,000 (2023:
£22,376,000) of which £Nil (2023: £Nil) was unrestricted and £23,881,000 (2023: £22,376,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

5 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'300 £'000 £000

Hire of facilities 151 - 151 166
Other income 74 - 74 111
225 - 225 266

The income from the academy frusts’ other trading activities was unrestricted for both 2024 and 2023,

6 INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest received

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2024 2023
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
108 - 108 14
108 - 108 14

The income from the academy trusts' investment activities was unrestricted for both 2024 and 2023.

7 EXPENDITURE

| Non Pay Expenditure | Total Total

Staff Costs Premises ither Costs 2024 2023

Expenditure on raising funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
- Direct costs - - g5 95 64
~ Allocated support costs - - 35 35 60
- - 130 130 114

Academy’s educational operations
- Direct costs 16,044 - 1,665 17,709 16,732
- Allocated support costs 2,986 2,040 1,686 6,712 5,857
19,030 2,040 3,361 24,421 22,5689
19,030 2,040 3,481 24,561 22,703

The expenditure was £24,551,000 (2023; £22,703,000) of which £130,000 (2023: £114,000) was
unrestricted, £23,960,000 (2023: £22,278,000) restricted and £461,000 (2023: £3114,000) restricted

fixed assets.

Net (Income)/expenditure for the year includes:
Operating leases rentals

Depreciation

Fees payable to auditor for:

- audit

- other services

2024 2023

£'000 £'000
83 77
461 311
23 23
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8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES Total Total
2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Direct costs - educational operations 17,709 16,732
Support costs - educational operations 6,712 5,867
24,421 22,589
Total Total
2024 2023
Analysis of Support Costs £'000 £'000
Support staff costs 2,986 2,361
Depreciation 461 311
Technology costs 210 228
Premises costs 1,679 1,657
l.egal costs - other 4 1
Other support costs 1,220 1,102
Governance costs 262 307
6,712 5,857
8 STAFF COSTS Total Total
a Staff costs and employee benefits 2024 2023
Staff costs during the year were: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 13,456 12,289
Social security costs 1,455 1,234
Pension costs 3,413 3,273
18,323 16,896
Agency staff costs 707 753

Staff restructuring costs

19,030 _ 17,649

b Staff severance contractual and non contractual payments
The academy trust paid no severance payments in the year (2023. £nif)

¢ Special staff severance non contractual payments
Included in staff restructuring costs there are no non statutory/non coniractual special severance
payments (2023: £nil),

d Staff numbers
The average number of persons (including School Leadership Team) employed by the Academy during

the year ended 31 August 2024 expressed as whole parsons was as follows:

2024 2023
Charitable Activities No No
Teachers 203 183
Administration and support - including Teaching Assistants 229 196
Management 34 34

466 413
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

9

STAFF COSTS (cont'd)

e Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

No No
£60,001 - £70.000 9 13
£70,001 - £80,000 10 5
£80,001 - £80,000 3 1
£90,001 - £100,000 2 2
£110,001 - £120,000 2 -
£120,001 - £130,000 1 1

f Key management personnel

10

The key management of the academy trust comprise the Directois and the Senior Leadership Team as
listed on page 3. The totat amount of employee benefits (Including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Academy Trust was £1,128,246 {2023: £1,184,355),

CENTRAL SERVICES

St Teresa Calcuita Muiti Academy Company has provided the following central services to Holy Trinity
Catholic Schacl, Holy Souis Catholic Primary School and Archbishop lisley Catholic School and Sixth
Form:

¢ human resources; & governance services;
o financial services; + educational support services; and
» |egal services; ® accounting services.

St Teresa of Calcuita Multi Academy Company charges for these services a flat percentage of 5%
(2022:3.25%) of all GAG income.

2024 2023
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: £'000 £'000
Holy Trinity Catholic School 268 244
Holy Souis Catholic Primary School 94 91
Archbishop llsley Catholic School and Sixth Form 354 335
The Resary Catholic Primary School 99 94
8t Chad's Cathelic Primary School 63 58
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 60 67

38

938 879
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd}

1

12

13

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ~- DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Chief Executive Officer has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from
an employment with the Academy Trust. The headteacher and other staff trustees receive
remuneration in respect of their contracts of employment as headteacher and staff and not in respect
of thelr services as trustees. Other trustees did not recelve any payments from the Academy Trust in
respect of thelr role as trustees. The value of the Chief Executive Officer's remuneration and other
remuneration was as follows:

2024 2023
Paul Ryan (Chief Executive Officer/Accounting Officer)
Remuneration £120,000 - £125,000 £120,000 - £125,000
Employers pension £30,000 - £35,000 £25,000 - £30,000

During the year ended 31 August 2024, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £378 were
reimbursed or paid (2023: £Nil) to 1 (2023: Nil) Director.

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustees' and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up fo £10,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this
insurance is included in the total insurance cost of the ESFA's RPA scheme.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Leasehold Leasehold
Improve- Land& Furnlture& Computer Motor

ments  Bulldings Equipment Equipment Vehicles Total
Cost £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2023 58 466 1,274 675 20 2,491
Additions 830 - 248 202 - 1,278
At 31 August 2024 886 466 1,520 877 20 3,769
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 4 25 358 472 11 870
Charged in year 5 9 290 153 4 461
At 31 August 2024 8 34 648 625 15 1,331
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 877 432 872 _252 8 2!438

At 31 August 2023 g2 441 216 203 3 1,621
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

2024 2023

14 DEBTORS £000 £'000
Trade debtors 16 1M
VAT recoverable 123 91
Prepayments and accrued income 680 626
Cther debtors 28 -

__ 767 _ 728

16 CREDITORS; AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Trade creditors 628 520
Other creditors 25 1,608
Saiix loans 24 24
Taxation & social security 731 -
Accruals 425 437
Deferred income 83 380

16

1,916 2!969
Deferred Income

Deferred income at 1 September 380 648
Resources deferred in the year 83 380
Amounts recognised as income during the year {380) {648)
Deferred income at 31 August 83 380

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance for 2023/24 for UIFSM
£58,049 (2023: £61,438), Sports England Crant £13,883 (2023: £Nil), National Tutoring Programme
ENil (2023: £2,892) and SCA grant £11,016 (2022: £31¢,915).

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN GREATER THAN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£'000 £000

Salix loans 36 80
36 60

In September 2018 Archbishop lIsley Catholic School took out an ESFA approved, interest free Salix
loan of £191,777 payable over 8 years. As at 31 August 2024, there is an amount outstanding included
in creditors falling due within one year of £23,872 (2023: £23,972). There is ais¢ an amount included in
creditors failing due after more than one year of £35,958 (2023: £58,930).
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17 FUNDS

The income funds of the academy applied for specific purposes are as follows:

Balance at Incoming Resources  Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2023 Transfers 2024
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (note i) 1,166 18,796  (19,050) o 1,002
General annual grant (GAG) - 16-19 funding . 664 (664) - -
Pupil Premium {note iii) - 1,753 (1,753} - -
Rates relief - 21 (21) = -
PE & Sports Grant - ESFA - 74 (74) - -
Teacher Pay Grant - 344 (344) - -
Teachers Pension Grant - 205 (205) - -
Universal Infant Free School Meals - 99 {99) - -
National tutoring programme - 92 (82) - -
ESFA mainstream funding - 669 (669) - -
Coronavirus Pupil Catch Up - 328 (328) - -
Other DIE/ESFA (note i) - 8 (8) - -
Pupil premium - LA (note ii) - 14 (14) - -
SEN - LA (note Iv) - 323 (323) - -
Other LA grants (note xii) - 103 {103) - -
Other restricted income - 488 (488) - -
Total general funds 1,166 23,981 (24,235) 91 1,002
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (note vii) 625 - (75) 24 474
DFEMESFA capital grants {note viii) 1,096 951 (304) - 1,743
Capital expenditure from GAG 34 - {45) 194 183
ESFA donated assets 42 - (37) - 6
Total flxed asset funds 1,697 951 (461) 218 2,405
Restricted pension scheme liabliity
Penslon reserve (note ix) (6,685) - 275 4056 (6,008}
(6,685) - 275 405 {6,005}
Total restricted funds (3,823) 24,932 (24,421) 714  (2,598)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 551 359 (128) (309) 473
LA prior year surplus {note x) 431 - (2) - 429
Total unrestricted funds 982 359 {130) (309} 902
Total funds (2,841) 25,291  (24,551) 405 _ {1,696)
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17 FUNDS (cont'd}

Notes
f) General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the academy. Under the
funding agreement with the Sacretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG that it would carry forward at 31 August 2024, (see note 2)

fiy Other grants received from the ESFA/DFE during the year to support with the financial needs of
the Academy during the vear.

fify Pupil Premium grant supports children from low income families placed at the academy.
iv) Speclal needs grant from BCC has been used to support pupils with learning or behavioural
issues by providing teaching and teaching assistant support,
v) Other grants. mainly from BCC, has been used to improve skills for employment and behaviour in
school,
vi} School funds are contributions received from parents which are used to support the Academy
Trust's activities.
vit) The gross transfer from the restricted generai fund and unrestricted fund to the Salix loan fund of
£24,000 (2023: £24,000) represents the payments against the loan balance during the period.
vili) Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants and by BCC donating fixed assets.
ix) The pension reserve represents the deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme (see note
28).
x) Surplus cash was transferred from BCC upon conversion to academy status.
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17 FUNDS (cont'd)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Incoming Resources  Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2022 Transfers 2023
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (note i) 1,119 17,594 (17,530) (18) 1,165
General annual grant (GAG) - 16-18 funding - 648 (648) - -
DFE/ESFA grants (note ii) - 59 (59) - -
Pupil Premium (nofe iii) - 1,685 (1,685)
Conversion grant (note ii) - 10 (10) - -
Rates relief - 59 (59) - -
PE & Sports Grant - ESFA - 74 (74) - -
Teacher Pay Grant - 1 ) - -
Teachers Pension Grant - 24 {24} - -
Universal Infant Free School Meals - 105 (105) - -
National tutoring programme - 139 (139) - .
ESFA supplementary grant - 546 (546) - -
ESFA mainstream funding - 278 (270) - -
Coronavirus Pupil Catch Up - 325 (325) - -
Other DfE/ESFA - 12 (12) - -
Pupil premium - LA {note iii) - 33 {33) - -
SEN - LA {note iv) - 410 (410) -
Other LA grants (note xii) . 130 (130) - .
Other restricted income - 243 (243) - -
School fund {note vi) 11 . (11) - -
Total general funds 1,130 22,376 (22,323) {(18) 1,165
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (note vii) 612 - (111) 24 626
DFE/ESFA capital grants (note viii) 142 1,080 (96) - 1,096
Capital expenditure from GAG 17 - {19) 36 34
ESFA donated assets 127 (85) - 42
Total fixed asset funds 898 1,050 {311) 60 1,697
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note ix) (8,167} - 45 1,437  (6,685)
(8,167) - 45 1,437  (6,685)
Total restricted funds {6,139) 23,426 (22,589) 1,479  (3,823)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note ix) 772 366 {114) {42) 882
Total unrestricted funds 772 366 {114) (42) 982
Total funds (6,387) 23,792 _ (22,703) 1,437 {2,841)
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17 FUNDS {cont'd)

TOTAL FUND ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY 2024 2023
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows: £'000 £000
Holy Trinity Catholic Schooi 504 654
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 254 254
Archbishop iisley Catholic Schoo! and Sixth Form 252 376
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 425 381
St Chad's Catholic Primary School 154 78
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 263 321
St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company 52 84
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,904 2147
Restricted fixed assets fund 2,405 1,697
Penslon reserve {6,005} (8,685)
Total {1,698) (2,841)

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other Other

Educational Support Costs
Support Staff Staff Educational {(excluding Total Total
Costs Costs Supplles Deprec'n) 2024 2023
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Holy Trinity School 4,060 782 502 688 6,032 5,428
Holy Souls Primary Scheol 1,558 314 80 251 2,203 2,151
Archbishop llsley Schoot 6,226 972 819 1,154 9,171 8,603
The Rosary Primaty School 1,741 271 100 408 2,620 2,382
St Chad's Primary School 972 256 106 235 1,669 1,534
St Joseph's Primary Sc¢hool 1,083 125 57 249 1,614 1,412
Central Function 404 266 98 315 1,081 876

Total 16,044 2,986 1,760 3,300 24,090 22,392




ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY

45

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

18

18

19

20

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Fixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Resfricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tanglble fixed assets - - - 2,438 2,438
Current assets 902 - 2,894 27 3,823
Current liabilities . - (1,892) (24) {1,916)
Non current liabilities - - - (386) (386)
Pension scheme
liability - (6,005) - - (6,005)
902 (6,005) 1,002 2,405  (1,696)
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Flixed
Pension General Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 1,621 1,621
Current assets 282 - 4,110 160 5,252
Current liabilities - - (2,945) (24) (2,969)
Non current liabilities - - - (680) {60)
Pension scheme
llabllity - {6,685) - - (6,685)
882 (6,686) 1,166 1,697  (2,841)
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements - -
LONG TERM COMMITMENTS INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases
At 31 August 2024 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under
non-cancsellable operating leases was:
2024 2023
Other Other
£'000 £'000
Amounts due within one year 42 48
Amounts due between one and five years 13 22
Amounts due more than five years - .
55 70
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21 RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

22

23

24

26

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activities) 740 1,089

Adjusted for;

Depreciation {note 13) 461 311
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (¢51) (1,050}
Interest receivable {108) (14)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 28) (607) {383)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 28) 332 338
Increase in debtors {29) {190}
Decrease in creditors (1,053} (2,570)
Net cash used In operating activities (1,215} (2,469}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2024 2023
£'000 £000
Interest received 108 14
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {1,278} (1,017)
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA, sponsors and others 861 1,050
Net cash (used In)/provided by Investing activities {219) 47
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2024 2023
£000 £000
Repayments of borrowing (24) (24}
Cash inflows from new borrowing - "
Net cash used In flnancing activities (24) {24)
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS At 31 Aug At 31
2024 2023
£'000 £'000
Cash in hand and at bank 3,086 4,524
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,066 4,524
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT At 31
At 1 Sept Cash Aug
2023 Flows 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank 4,524  (1,458) 3,066
Overdraft - - -
4,624  (1,458) 3,066
Loans within one year {24) - (24)
l.oans within more than one year (60) 24  (36)
3,006

4,440

(1,434)
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26

27

28

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the funding agreement bestween the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy
Company and the Secretary of State, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset
for which a Government capital grant was received, the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company
is required either to reinvest the proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same
proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost
met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whethsr as a result of the Secretary of State or the St
Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company serving notice, the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy
Company is obliged to repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's sites and premises
and other assets held for the purpose of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company; and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the funding agreement.

MEMBER LIABILITY

Each member of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company undertakes to contribute to It's
assets in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she
ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and
liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's employees belong to two principal pension schemes:
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Warwickshire
County Councll Pension Fund. Both are defined multi employer benefit schemes.

As described in note 1 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the St Teresa Of Calcutta Multi
Academy Company, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the
maintained school and new employees who were eiigible to, and did, join the scheme in the period.
The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative
service at both the predecessor school and the Trust's at the balance sheet date.

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2024 was £3,413,568 (2023:
£3,273,000) of which £2,363,566 (2023: £2,006,000) relates to the TPS and £1,050,000 (2023:
£1,267,000) relates to LGPS.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS relates to the period 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the period
ended 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £412,081 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023:
£347,751) and are included within other creditors,
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28 PENSIONS AND SiMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership Is automatic for teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuatlon of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions,

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31
March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023,
with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate
of CPL. The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

« Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost controt result is such that
no change in member benefits is needed.

o Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits)
for service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200
million, giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is due fo be
implemented from 1 Aprit 2028.

The employer's costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,363,566 (2023: £2,008,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted
for its contributions to the scheme as If it were a defined contribution scheme, The academy trust has
set out above, the information available on the scheme.
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28 PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in a separate Director administered
funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,546,000 (2023:
£1,550,000) of which employers contributions totalled £1,325,000 (2023: £1,312,000) and employees
contributions totalled £221,000 (2023: £238,000).

The agreed employers contributions for future years are 22.3% (2023: 22.3%) for each of the
academies. The agreed contributions for employees are 6.8% (2023: 6.9%).

Parllament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK.

Principal Actuarial Assumptlons 2024 2023
The major assumpticns used by the actuary were: August  August
% per % per

annum  annum

Discount rate 6.0% 6.2%
Salary increases 3.7% 4.0%
Pension increase 2.7% 3.0%

Sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as
follows:

At 31 At 31
August  August
2024 2023

Approx Approx

Change to Change to
Employers Employers

Llabllity Liabiilty

£'000 £000

Discount rate reduced by 0.1% per annum 358 328

Salary increase rate increased by 0.1% 25 54

Pension increase rate increased by 0.1% 340 281
The mortality assumptions used were as follows:

At 31 At 31

August August

2024 2023

Longevity at age 65 years years

- Men 20.1 20.2

- Women 221 221

Longevity at age 65
- Men 204 20.6

~ Women 24.7 24.8
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28 PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

St Teresa Of Calcutta Multl Academy Company's share of the assets in the scheme were:

fair value at 31

August 2024

£'000

Equity instruments 4,996
Debt instruments 3,361
Property 576
Cash and othar liguid assetfs 672

Other assets -
Total market value of assets 9,605
Prasent value of scheme liabilities:

- Funded 9,605
- Unfunded 6,005
Total liabilities 16,610
Deficit in the scheme {6,005)

Falr vaiue at 31
August 2023
£'000

6,169

1,697

633

303

7,602

7,602
6,685

14,287

__(6,685)

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a surplus of £707,000 {2023: £84,000 deficit).

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities:

2024

£'000

Cutrent service cost 718

Interest income (429)
Interest cost 761

Total amount recognised in the SoFA 1,050

2023

£'000
929

(310)
648

1287
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Changes In deficlt during the year:
Balance at 1 September
Movement in year:

- Employer service cost (net of employee contributions)

- Employer contributions

- Expected return on scheme assets
- Interest cost

- Actuarial gains

Deficlt in the scheme at 31 August

Changes In the present value of defined benefit
obligations were as follows:

Balance at 1 September

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by scheme participants

Benefits pald

Actuarial gains

Scheme liabilities at 31 August

Changes in the fair value of the share of scheme
asseots:

Balance at 1 September

Expected return on scheme assefs

Actuarial gains/(losses)

Contributions by employer

Benefits paid

Contributions by scheme participants

Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August

2024
£'000
6,686

718

{1,326)

(429)
761

(405}
6,006

e
2024
£000
14,287

78

761

221
(250)

{127)

16,610

2024

£'000
7,602
429
278
1,326

(250)
221

9,606

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 {cont'd)
28 PENSIONS AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

2023
£'000
8,167

929
{1,312)
(310)
648
(1,437)

6,685

2023
£'000
14,771
929
648
238
(169)

(2,130)
14,287

mmh
2023
£'000
6,604
310
(693)
1,312
(169)
238

7,602

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2025 is £1,341,000

(2024: £1,282,000).
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30

31

The Archdiocese of Birmingham is a sponsoring organisation of St Teresa of Calcutta MAC with 3
members of the school board also members of the Archdiocese. St Teresa of Calcuita MAC buys
educational services from Archdiocese of Birmingham as part of a service level agreement.
Membership for the year totalled £27,270 (2023: £26,793) and the balance outstanding at 31 August
2024 was £NIl (2023: £Nil).

Mr D Whale is a Director of Michae! Dufly Parinership Limited. The academy paid Michael Dufty
Partnership Limited £12,000 for financial services in 2023/24 (2023; £12,000) and £Nif was outstanding
at 31 August 2024 {31 August 2023: £Nil).

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £27,776 (2023: £25,054), disbursed
£33,771 (2023: £18,480) and repaid £2,125 to the ESFA from the fund. An amount of £22,277 (2023:
£30,397) is included in other creditors relating to the undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

The academy trust distributes coliegiate as an agent for Birmngham City Gouncil. in the accounting
period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £Nil (2023: £Nil), disbursed £Nil {2023; £31,303) and
repaid £179,098 to Birmingham City Council from the fund. An amount of £Nil {2023: £179,098) is
included in other creditors relating to the undistributed funds that is repayable to Birmingham City
Council.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no matetial adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheet date.



